FILED

SID J. WHITE

JAN 13 1998V

CLERK, SUPPLEME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RICKEY PAUL MURRAY,

Petitioner,

versus

CASE NO. 92,143

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
IN AND FOR MARION COUNTY
AND THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

#### PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON, PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRYNN NEWTON
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
Florida Bar Number 175150
112-A Orange Avenue
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114-4310
904-252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

###

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was charged by informations filed in the Circuit Court of Marion County, Florida, with "felony driving while license suspended or revoked." (R 1, 44) On February 14, 1997, he entered a plea of nolo contendere, reserving his right to appeal the trial court's denial of his motion to dismiss; adjudication of guilt was withheld and he was ordered to spend concurrent terms of one year in the county jail, pay fines of \$500.00 per count, and serve concurrent terms of one year on probation. (R 20-21, 25, 44, 65-66, 67, 93, 26, 98-101, 105-107, 110-112)

Notices of appeal were timely filed on March 10, 1997, and the Office of the Public Defender was appointed to represent Petitioner on appeal. (R 35-36, 74-75, 42-43, 81-82) The trial court's orders were affirmed, per curiam, on December 5, 1997. Murray v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2722 (Fla. 5th DCA December 5, 1997). (APPENDIX A).

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Florida Appellate Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i) and Article V Section 3(b)(3) provide that the Supreme Court may in its discretion review any decision of a District Court that expressly declares valid a state statute. Because the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case held that Section 322.34(1), the "felony DUI" statute, is valid, this Honorable Court has jurisdiction to accept this case for review. The decision which the District Court cites in its <u>per curiam</u> decision as authority therefor is pending review in Supreme Court Case Number 91,611.

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION CITES AS CONTROLLING AUTHORITY ITS DECISION IN <u>BAULERSON v. STATE</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2267 (Fla. 5th DCA September 26, 1997), WHICH EXPRESSLY DECLARES A STATUTE VALID AND WHICH IS PENDING REVIEW BY THIS HONORABLE COURT.

Petitioner filed motions to dismiss the informations charging him with "felony driving while license suspended," contending that by the language of the 1995 statute, he would not be guilty of a felony if the trial court exercised its discretion to withhold adjudication, and that it was an unconstitutional delegation of the Legislature's power, to the trial courts, to determine whether violation of Section 322.34(1) is to be punished as a felony or a misdemeanor. (R 20-21, 65-66) The Circuit Court denied the motions. (R 25, 67) On December 5, 1997, The Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed, per curiam, the trial court's ruling, citing Raulerson v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2267 (Fla. 5th DCA September 26, 1997), as authority. (APPENDIX B). Murray v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2722 (Fla. 5th DCA December 5, 1997).

In <u>Raulerson</u>, the District Court rejected the argument, that Section 322.34(1) is unconstitutional because the delegation of legislative power to the trial court (to determine whether a violation of the statute is a felony or a conviction) violates Article II, Section 3 Article of the Florida Constitution, and found the "felony DUI" statute to be valid. Florida Appellate Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i) and Article V Section 3(b)(3) provide that the Supreme Court may in its discretion review any decision of a District Court that expressly declares valid a state statute. This Honorable Court should accept jurisdiction of this cause and decide whether Section 322.34(1) is constitutional.

Raulerson v. State is currently pending acceptance for review by this Honorable Court in Case Number 91,611. Because the decision in this case cites a decision, Raulerson, which is pending review by the Florida Supreme Court, this Honorable Court has jurisdiction of this appeal and should grant review in this cause. See Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), wherein this Honorable Court held that a District Court of Appeal per curiam opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by the Supreme Court constitutes prima facie conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction.

#### CONCLUSION

For the reasons expressed herein, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Honorable Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant review of the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this cause.