015

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE

REINEL SANTIAGO,

OCT 19 1996

Petitioner,

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

 $\mathbf{v}$ .

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

93822 Casa No. 92823

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM

# 

#### RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL Tallahassee, Florida

JOSEPH A. TRINGALI Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No.: 0134924 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401 Telephone (561) 688-7759

**Counsel for Respondent** 

# **

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent was the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Broward County, Florida, and the appellant in the Florida Fourth District Court of Appeal. Petitioner was the defendant in the trial court and appellee in the District Court of Appeal.

In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Court, except that the Appellee may also be referred to as "State" or "Prosecution."

The following symbols will be used;

PB = Petitioner's Initial Brief on Jurisdiction

R = Record on Appeal

T = Transcripts

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts Petitioner's statement of the case and facts for purposes of determining jurisdiction in this appeal in so far as that statement presents an accurate, objective and non-argumentative recital of the procedural history and facts in the record, and subject to the additions and clarifications set forth in the argument portion of this brief which are necessary to resolve the legal issues presented upon appeal.

### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Petitioner has failed to show conflict with either the decision of any other district court of appeal or any decision of this Court within the four corners of the Fourth District's opinion. His petition for review should be denied.

#### **ARGUMENT**

PETITIONER HAS IMPROPERLY INVOKED THE JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT AS THE OPINION BELOW DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH THE DECISIONS OF THIS COURT OR WITH THE OPINIONS OF OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL

To properly invoke the "conflict certiorari" jurisdiction of this Court, Petitioner must demonstrate that there is "express and direct conflict" between the decision challenged therein, and those holdings of other Florida appellate courts of this Honorable Court on the same rule of law to produce a different result that other state appellate courts faced with the substantially same facts. Article V, §3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1980); Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(iv). This Court has stated that "conflict between decisions must be expressed and direct, i.e., it must appeal within the four corners of the majority opinion." *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). A petitioner's own interpretation of "conflict" is simply not enough.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal opinion in *State v. Kern*, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D1144 (Fla. 4th DCA May 6, 1998) -- the decision upon which the case at bar rests -- holds that for certain purposes, a court may find that a defendant has been "convicted" regardless of whether or not adjudication was withheld. Petitioner argues that the Fourth District's holding conflicts with "a common understanding of Florida jurisprudence" and cites, for example, *Castillo v. State*, 590 So. 2d 458 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991) wherein the Third District Court of Appeal held that a defendant who was not "adjudicated" of a prior felony could not subsequently be convicted of the crime of carrying a firearm by a convicted felon.

Respondent respectfully submits that Petitioner's argument begs the question. Indeed, the Fourth District *Kern* opinion points out that "conviction' is a chameleon-like term" in Florida law "which draws its meaning from statutory context." *Kern, id.,* at 1145. And although the Court noted that "the most frequent construction of a statute's use of the term 'conviction' has required a trial court's adjudication of the defendant's guilt," such is not always the case. Thus, the question before this Court is not whether the Fourth District's opinion conflicts with opinions of this Court or other districts in terms of the definition of "conviction" for all purposes; rather, the question is whether the Fourth District's opinion conflicts for the purposes of a particular statute: §322.34 Florida Statutes (1995). Clearly, it does not.

The Fourth District's opinion points out that in 1990 the Florida legislature specifically addressed the "conviction" issue with regard to motor vehicle licences by amending the existing §322.01 Florida Statutes (1989) to provide that a "conviction" includes "an admission or determination of a noncriminal traffic infraction pursuant to s. 318.14, or a judicial disposition of an offense committed under any federal law substantially conforming to the aforesaid state statutory provisions." Thus, the Fourth District said, "[t]he focus of this definition is whether an offense was committed and not on the judicial decision of whether to impose or withhold adjudication."

Finally, Petitioner argues that because the Florida sentencing guidelines make special provision for the cases in which adjudication is withheld, that is, because the guidelines define "conviction" to include all determinations of guilt, then *ipso facto*, the "common" meaning of the word "conviction" does not include such cases. However his argument is demolished by the Fourth District's reference to §318.14(10)(a) Florida Statutes (1995) which provides for specific cases in which a defendant may plead *nolo contendere* and provide proof of compliance with the licensing

statute to the court clerk. In those cases -- limited to no more than once in each year for a particular defendant, and to three times per defendant -- "adjudication shall be withheld." In short, the legislature has made ample provision for the 'oops factor' -- cases in which a defendant inadverantly or perhaps negligently is found driving with a suspended licence and would ordinarily receive a "withheld adjudication." But, says the legislature, those instances are now limited to one per year for each defendant, and no more than three in a lifetime. And other than those instances, the Fourth District rightly held the focus would be on whether the offense was committed, not whether it was adjudicated.

In conclusion, the Fourth District Court of Appeal opinions in *State v. Kern*, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D1144 (Fla. 4th DCA May 6, 1998 and *State v. Santiago*, 713 So. 2d 1127 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998) do not conflict with the decisions of this Court or with any opinion of any other district court of appeal. The arguments advanced by Petitioner in his jurisdictional brief go far beyond the four corners of the opinion, and attempt to show that the Fourth District Court of Appeal was "wrong" in its holding. However, as stated above, Petitioner's interpretation is simply not enough. Since there is no conflict jurisdiction, this Court should decline jurisdiction.

#### **CONCLUSION**

WHEREFORE based on the foregoing arguments and the authorities cited herein,
Respondent respectfully contends that this Court should refuse to accept jurisdiction in this cause.